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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have the pleasure in submitting their Opening Financial Statements for the
period ended 31 December, 2018 along with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

Legal Form
The bank was incorporated in Nigeria as a Limited Liability Company on 17 September 2003,
under the name of Ril -Gwari Community Bank Limited.
a) Thename of the bank was change to HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited by
Special resolution on 13 May 2008.
b) The lollowing subscribers of Ril-Gwari Community Bank Limited relinquished
their shareholding to the new shareholders:
.  Creative Financial Consultants Limited - 12500000
ii.  Rogovee Investments Limited - 12,500,000

c) The shares of the Bank were — allotied as follows:

L, Prof (Mrs) Ndi Okercke - Onyiuke - 1.500,000
ii. Aya Okereke - 2,300,000
L. Augustine Rogers Nwoke - 3,750,000
iv. Joyce Rogers-Nwoke - 2,500,000
V. Micheal Rogers-Nwoke - 1.250.000
vi. Dagogo- Iveimo - 3,000,000
vii.  Abinye lyeimo - 2,500,000

d) The changes were subsequently filed with Corporate Aflairs Commission on 21
August 2008,

e} At the Board of Directors meeting held 24 December 2008 the authorized share
capital of the Bank was increased to N275m by the creation of additional 250m
ordinary shares at a nominal value of N1 ecach, The increase was filed with
Corporate Affairs Commission on 9 January 2009,

f) At the Board of Directors meeting held 28 March 2010, the authorized share
capital of the Bank wus increased 1o N500m by the creation of additienal 225m
ordinary shares at a nominal value of N | each. The increase was filed with
Corporate Affairs Commission on 21 April 2010,

gy At the Board of Directors meeting held & October 2014, the authorized share
capital of the Bank was increased to Nlbillion by the creation of additional
500m ordinary shares at a nominal value of N1 each. The increase was filed at
the Corporate Atfairs Commission on 16 October 2014.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Bank was Microfinance Banking services
1. DIRECTORS
1. The names of the present Dircctors are listed on pages ii.
2. In accordance with article 33 of the bank’s articles of association, the bank can by
ordinary resolution remaove a director and appoint another person in his stead.
Lil



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

2. DIRECTORS® INTEREST
1. The interest of the directors in the issued share capital of the bank as recorded in the

register of Directors’ shareholding as at 31 December, 2018 are as follows:

Prince Olorungbemiga Tivamiyu 14,366,667
Prof. Ndi Okereke-Onyiuke 52,300,000
Juliana Ngozi Achuinine 13,666,667
Dagogo Emman lyeimo | 8.690.000
Rogers Augustine Nwoke 149,000,000

3. SIHHAREHOLDINGS STRUCTURE
The shareholders’ interests in the issued share capital of the bank s recorded in the register of
the bank as at 31 December, 2018 are as follows:

' Name of Shareholders No. of % of
. Shares Shareholding
Augustine Rogers-Nwoke 140,000,000 23.23%
Rogoyee Investment Limited 60.000,000 |  9.35%
Prof, Ndi Okereke Onviuke 52,500,000 8.18%
Ava Okereke Onviuke i 52,500,000 8.18%
Creative Financial Consultants Lid 52,500,000 8.18%
Hybrid Properties Limited 52,500,000 8.18%
Mining System Limited 52.500.000 3. 18%
Dangogo-Emman [veimo | 18,690,000 2.91%
| N.D.I System 14,000,000 2.18% '
Rear Adm. Festus Porbeni 5,000,000 1,.25% o i}
HASAL Stalf Multipurpose Cooperative 12,900,000 |  2.01% '
Society nl N
Tobechukwu Oreh - | 7.875,000 1.23%
Keneolisa Orch B 7.875.000 1.23%
Juliana Achunine 13,666,667 2.13%
Dr. Agbai Eke 7.000.000 1.09%
Tiyamiyu Olugbenga 14,366,667 2.24%
Joyce Rogers-Nwoke 3.075,000 0.79%
 HASAL Shereholders Cooperative 6,150,000 0.96%,
Michael Rogers Nwoke 3_._22?5-00 0.50% —
[1fab Limited = 6.133,333 0.96%
Abinye lyeimo 1,050,000 0.16% !
Dadavine oil & Gas 44000000 | 6.86% |
‘Total 641,519,167 | 100.00% '

v



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

Prof. Mrs. Ndi Okereke-Onyviuke (OON)
Non-Exeetrrive Director

Prol has over thirty five years Capital Market experience, working in the Capital Market
from the New York stock exchange to the Nigerian Stock exchange where she rosc to
the position of the Dirsctor General.

She i5 a world acclaimed financial expert who has distinguished herself in her field of
Endeavor. She belongs to many Profcssional Institutions including Chartered Institute
of Stockbrokers (Fellow), African Stock Exchange Association (ASEA), World
Federation of Exchanges (WFE) to mention but a few,

Mrs. Juliana Ngezi Achunine;
Nan-Executive Dirvecior

Over 31 years working experience as Civil Servant with the Federal Civil Service where
she started from the Ministry of Finance and spent 21 years there, o office of the Head
of Service of the federation as Assistant Director, to Federal Ministry of Health as
Deputy Director, 1o the Federal Ministry of Aviation as Deputy Director where she
retired in 2010.

Her academic background is in Public Administration from Michigan State University
USA.

Mr. Dagogo Emman [yeimo:
Non- Executive Director

Dagogo holds an MSC in Economics from University of Manchester, United Kingdom
and a professional Accountant and Chartered Stockbroker. His experience spans over
the Nigerian Capital Market where he commenced his career from and now has his own
Stock Broking firm. His compelencics eentre around Asset & Fund Management.
Corporate Finance, stock broking and dealings amongst others,

He 1s an avid chess and tennis player.

Mr. Henry Imah Akpan;
Naon-Execmtive Director

Henry has over 9 years working experience covering business development, human
resources, and training and in the Financial Sector. He holds a Bachelor of En gineering
Degree from Federal University of Minna, a Centified Project Manager and Certified
Economist,

Vi



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

¥ii

Mr. Rogers Augustine .1, Nwoke;
Managing Divector/Chief Executive Ojficer

Rogers holds an MBA from Warwick Business School, University of Warwick.
England where his research interest focused on Microfinance and Entreprencurship
Development. This led to birth of HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited where he i
the Chief Exceutive Officer.

He is an Alumnus of Harvard Business School Accion Program in Strategic
Leadership for Microfinance. He is also a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN), an Honorary Senior Member (HCIB) of the Chartered
Institute ol Bankers of Nigeria.

His wealth of experience span over 2 decades in the Nigeria Finance Industry, He is an
International Certified Expert on Microfinance (ICME) and International Certified
Expert in SME. Finance (iCSME) from the Frankfurt School of Finance and
Management, Germany.

7. DONATION

The Bank made donation, gifis in form of Corporate Social Responsibility and anniversary
expenses of @14 Imillion during the year

8. FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets during the vear are shown in the notes 1o the account. [n the
opinion ol the Directors, the market values of the bank's properties are not less than the
vatlue shown in the financial statements.

9. EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES

1.

=

Employment of Disabled persons:

Applications for employment by disebled persons received full and fair consideration
having regards to the aptitude and ability of cach applicant. The Bank had one disabled
persons in her employment as at 31 December 2018,

Health, Safety at work and Welfare of Emplovees:

Health and safety regulations are in force within the premises of the bank. The bank
provides subsidy to all levels of emplovees towards transportation, housing. lunch and
medical expenses,

Employees’ Involvement and Training:
The bank provides training for its employees through hoth intermal and external courses.

Vil



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

10. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

['here were no significant post balance sheet events, which could have had a material effect
on the state of affairs of the bank as at 31 December 2018 which have not been adequately
provided for or disclosed in the financial statements.

11. AUDITORS
In accordance with section 357(2) of the companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004,
Adenusi & Co. (Chartered Accountants) has indicated their willingness 1o continue in office. A
resolution will be proposed authorizing the Directors to determine their remuneration,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

= = E‘E—'
SecretarFies to the Board
21 March 2019

Abuja, Nigeria

Vil



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

Hasal Microfinance Bank Limited maintains high Standards of C arporate Governance and best
practice. This is reviewed from time to time to ensure we keep pace with global standards.

THE DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY PERSONNEL

The Directors and other key personnel of the bank complied with the Codes of Corporate
Govemance issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) for Microfinance Banks in Nigeria
during the period under review.

SHAREHOLDING

The Bank has a sharcholding structure with no single ultimate individual beneficiary holding
more than 23.23% of the Bank's total issued shares.

BORAD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting the strategic direction of the bank and also
oversight of seniar Management. It also ensures that good Corporate Governance processes and
best practices are implemented,

The Board of the bank consists of persons of diverse discipline and skills, chosen on the basis of
professional background and expertise, business experience and integrity as well as knowledze of
the bank's business,

Directors are fully abreast of their responsibilities and knowledgeable in the business and are
therefore able to exercise good judgment on issues relating to the bank® business, They have on
the basis of this acted in good faith with due diligence and skill and in the overall best interest of
the bank and relevant stakeholders during the period under review.

BOARD STRUCTURE

The Board 1s made up of a Non-Executive Chairman. five Non-Executive Directors and one
Executive Director, MD/CEOQ. In compliance with CBN directives. an independent Non-
Executive Director has been appointed but still awaiting CBN approval.

The Managing Director/Chief’ Executive Officer is responsible for the day to day running of the
bank, assisted by the Executive Committee (EXCO).

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

1. The Board shall be accountable and responsible for the performance and affairs of the MER.
Specifically, and in line with the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA )
1990 (as amended), Dircctors owe the MFB the duty of care and loyalty to act in the interest of
the MFB"s shareholders and other stakeholders.

2. Members of the Board are severally and jointly linble for the activities of the MFB.

3. The Board shall define and document the MFB s stratezic goals, approve its long and short-
term business strategies and monitor their implementation by management.

4. The Board shall determine the skills. knowledge and experience that members require which
shall, at the minimum, be in line with the requirements of the Approved Persons Regime,



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

3 The Board shall ensure that its human, material and financial resources are effectively deployed
towards the attainmem of sel goals of the MFB.

6 The Board shall appoint the CEO as well as top management staff and establish a framework for
delegation of authority in the MEB, which shall comply with extant regulations issued by the
CBN from time to time,

7 The Board shall estahlish and maenitor agreed performance targets for the management.

8 The Board shall set limits of authority, specifving the threshold for large transactions which it
must approve before they take place.

9. The Board shall ensure that a succession plan is in place for the MD/CEO for Unit MFBs; and
MD/CEO and executive directors for State and National MFBs.

10. The Board shall consider, approve and monitor the implementation of the MFB's budget,
including setting expenditure limits lor management and Board Committees.

I'l. The Board shall approve credit facilities in line with the approved limits of authority of the
“FB.

12. The Board shall ensure strict adherence to the Code of Conduct for Directors of Banks and
Other Finaneial [nstitutions in Nigeria,

The membership of the Board during the vear is as follows:

Board of Directors
[sN B ._|_Nﬂme -
I Mr. Rogers Al Nwoke

Mr. Olorungbemiga Tiyamiyu
Prof. Ndi Okercke-Onyiuke
Mr. Dagogo [ycimo

Mrs, Juliana Ngozi Achunine

| Mr. Henry Akpan

Ohn | e | L

The Board meets at least every quarter and in special circumstances call for extra-ordinary
sessions to address urgent matters requiring the attention of the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board carries out its oversight [unctions using its various Board Committecs. This makes for
efficiency and allows for a deeper auention to specific matters for the Board.

Membership of the Committee of the Board is intended 10 make the best use of the skills and
experiences of non-Executive directors in particular.
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The standing Committees of the Board are:

A, HUMAN RESOURCES

I Mrs. Juliana N, Achunine  (Non-Executive Director) Chairman
il Mr. Henry Akpan (Non-Executive Director) Member
111 Mr. Rogers Nwoke (Executive Director) Member

B. FINANCE AND GENERAL FURPOSE COMMITTEE,

[ Prof. Ndi Okereke-Onyiuke (Non-Executive Director) Chairman
L Mrs, Juliana Achunine (Non-Executive Director) Member
[ Mr. Henry Akpan (Non-Executive Director) Member
IV.  Mr. Rogers Nwoke {Executive Director) Member

c. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

I. Mr. Henry Akpan (Non-Executive Director) Chairman
I1. Mr. Dagogo Iveimo (Non-Exescutive Director) Member
lIL.  Mr, Rogers Nwoke ( Executive Directorh Member

D. CREDIT COMMITTEE

’ Mr, Dagego [yveimo (Non-Executive Director) Chairman
1. Mr. Henry Akpan {Non-Executive Director) Member
il Mr. Rogers Nwoke { Executive Director) Member

E. AUDIT COMMITTEE

1, Mr. Dagogo Iyveimo (Non-Executive Direetor) Chairman
1. Mr, Henry Akpan (Non-Exccutive Girector) Member
IL  Mrs, Juliana N. Achunine  (Non-Executive Dircctor) Member

Euch Committee’s Terms of Reference are:

i. Human Resources terms of reference include Succession plan, recruitment of seniar
management, evaluation and compensation of CEQ, Pension matters etc

ii. Finance and General Purpose terms of reference include approval of capital expenditures,
ensure expenditures is in line with approved budget. compliance with laws in respect of directors
related party transaction, reviewing remuneration policy & structure.

1. Information Technology terms of reference is to evaluate company LT strategy, review LT
related projects and cost implication

iv. Credit Committee terms of reference is to cnsure the banks has quality risk asset. ensure
directors related transactions are not abused etc

v. Audit Committee terms of reference is to appraise audit conducted internally and externally,
reviev! adequacy of internal control and ensuring compliance with prudential guideline of the
bank.

Xi



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

Directors’ Remuneration Policy:

Non-Executive Directors
Our Directors are only entitled to sitting allowance and offshore allowance when a meeting is
held which caters for their logistics.

Directors are also sponsored for training programmes that they require to enhance their duties to

the bank.

Executive Directors

The remuneration policy for Executive Directors considers various elements, including fixed
remuneration, taking into account the level of responsibility, and ensuring this remuneration is
competitive with remuneration paid for equivalent posts in Microfinance banks of equivalent

status in Nigeria,

Schedule of board committees meeting held during the year
Full Board and Commitiee Meeting was held 4 times during the year. The only director ot
present at the meeting was Prof. Ndi Okereke-Onyiuke with no apology or proxy.

The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board of directors, board committees and

members” attendance at these meeting during the year under revisw:

Number of Meeting

| Board Committees | Date of | Attendees
Committee Attended by
Meetings Members

Human Resources

1# Quarter 8/2/18

2 Quarter 17/7/18
3™ Quarter 4/10/18
4% Ouarter 24/1/19

Mrs Juliana Achunine
Mr Henry Akpan
Mr Rogers Nwoke

4 meetings cach

Finance & General
Purpose Commitiee

1% Quarter 8/2/18

2™ Quarter 17/7/18
3™ Quarter 4/10/18
4% Quarter 24/1/19

Mrs Juliana Achunine
My Henry Akpan
Mr Rogers Nwoke

| 4 meetings cach

Credit Comnuittee

1¥ Quarter 8/2/18

2™ Quarter 17/7/18
3" Quarter 4/10/18
4™ Quarter 24/1/19

Mr Henry Akpan
Mr Rogers Nwoke

4 meetings each

Inlormation
Technology

1% Quarter 8/2/18

2™ Quarter 17/7/18
39 Quarter 4/10/18
44 Quarter 24/1/1%

Audil Commitiee

15 Quarter 8/2/18
2% Quarter 17/7/18
3™ Quarter 4/10/18
| 4 Quarter 24/1/19

Mr-[)agogﬁ Iyeimo
| Mr Henry Akpan
Mr Rogers Nwolke

Mr Dagogo Iyeimo
Mr Henry Akpan
Mrs Juliana Achunine

4 meetings each

4 meetings each

xii



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

The Bank’s analysis of Fraud and Forgeries Returns is as given below:

| Nature of Number | % | Actual loss |
| fraud recorded | Loss | to the Bank
| | _1(N)
| ATM Nil _ |
Staft Nil |
Perpetrate
Impersonaiion | Nil 3 )
Stolen/forged | Nil
instriment l
Others Nil |
| Total Nil 1 1

MONITORING COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Chief Compliance Officer

The bank has put arrangement in place for the appointment of a Chief Compliance Officer who
will monitor compliance with money laundering requirements and the implementation of the code
of Corporate Governance ol the bank.

The Chief Compliance Officer and the Company Secretary will forward regular returns to the
Central Bank of Nigeria on all whistle- blowing reports and also on Corporate Governance
compliance. Assess the appropriateness of internal policies, procedures and guidelines, ensure a
lollow-up of any identified deficiencies, make recommendations for amendments, where
necessary, and supervise the implementation of corrective medsures o mitigate the identified
deficiencies;

Codes of Conduct
Hasal Microfinance bank has internal Code of Professional Conduct for Employees and Direciors,
which all members of staff subscribe to upon assumption of duties.

Annual Internal Audit
The internal Audit Deparmment of Hasal Microfinance Bank Limited carries out annual audit of
each of the bank branches in line with the Bank's Annual Audit Programme and provide
assurance on air tight control for policies and practizes of the various departments and units of the
bank. This audit exercise covers all operational areas of the bank and the outcome is discussed
with Executive Management for timely intervention on identified lapses. It is important to note
that this exercise is distinet from the daily operations transactions review carried out by the
respective internal Control unit within the branches and Head Office departments/units

X111t



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

that this exereise is distinet from the daily operations transactions review carvied out by the
respective internal Control unit within the branches and Head Office departments units

Quarterly Loan Review/Andit

This audit is carries out by the Internal Audit department of Hasal Microfinance Bank Limited.
The core areas of concentration during this audit exercise include asset quality assessment, loan
performance, review of security pledge, loan conformity with Credit Policy Guideline (CPG).
documentation check and review of central liability report among others.

Report of External Auditors

In Tine with global hest practices and regulatory guidelines, the bank undertakes review of
Managemenr letters from external Auditors on periodic audit of the bank. This is to ensure that all
exceptions are complied with and for implementation of the Auditors’ recommendations.

Xy
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REPORTS OF THE AUDITCRS TO THE MEMBERS OF HASAL MICROFINANCE RANK LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMB3ER 2018
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
Which compnse the financial position as at 31 December 2018 and statement of comprehensive income, und statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of siznifieant accounting policies set out in pages 7 ta 17 and
other explanatory notes sel cut on pagss 18 to 44 for the year ended 31 December 2018, preparcd under the
hastorical cost convention and going coneem hasis in line with Internationul Financial Reporting Standards (1FRS).
Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Andirors
In accordance with the provisions of sectien 334 and 335 of the Companies and Allied matters Act, 1990, the Company’s
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the finaneial stntements which pive g true and fair view of the State of AfTairs
of the Company and of the comprehensive income for the financial year. These include ensuring that:-
- Adequate internal control procedures are instituted 1o safe guard the Bank’s Assets as well as preventing and detect
fraud and other irregulanties.
- Proper accounting records are kept
- Sustmning accounting policics are used and consistently applied in line with accounting standard
- The financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis, unless it is presume that the Bank will not continue
in business,
It is eur responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on cur audit, on those statements and 1 report our opinion
e you,
Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing., An audit includes examination, on test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amount and disclosures in the financial statement, It also includes an assessment of the
significant ¢stimate and judzments made hy the directors in the prepaation of the Gnancisl statement and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's ciccumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so 2% ta obtain all the information and explanauons which we considered neoessary
' order 1o provide us with sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance that the financial statement are free fom
materig] misstaternent, whether caused by fraud, errar or other frrsgularity. Tn forming ouwr opinion, we alss evalucee the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statement, and assessed whether the company’s
books of account had been nroperly kept.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Assets have been properly valued and adequate provision have been made fonr depreciation in the
valus thereot, the Bank’s books have been property kept, the bank have not contravensd the bank and other financial
mstitution Acts (BOFIA] or any other regulatmy guidelines. The financial statements which are in agresment with the
book of accounts, give a tnie and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank for the vear ended 31 December, 2008, of its
profit for the year ended, and comply with the relevani statements of sccounting standard published to date by the
Migerin Accouming Swundards Boord, the Company's and Allied Matter Act, 1990, Bank and other financial institution
Acts (BOFIA), Nigena Deposit Insurance Acl 1988 and relevant Cenral Bank of Nigeria circulars,

Contraventions

I'he bank did not contravened any section of the banks and other financial institution Acts during the vear,

The financial statements which are in aureement witl the book of gecounts, give o true and tair view of the siate of
affairs of the Bank for the vear ended 31 December 2018

Other reporting responsibilities

The Bank has complied with the relevant Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, the Company s and Allied Mater
Act, 1990, Financinl Reporting Counsil of Nigeria, Bank and ather financial institution Acts (BOFTA), MNigeria Deposit
Tnsuranc;.&c! 1988 and relevant Central Bank of Nigerid Crreulars,

Ahmed Tounde Adentisi FCA, FRC20 13/ 1CAN/ 0000001 086
ForzAdenusi & Co. (Chartered Accountants)

Abuja. Migeria
S April 2019

(]



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER.2018.

Note
Interest income 5
[nterest expense 5]
Net interest income
Impairment charge for Other known Josses 18.1
Impairment charge for credit losses 7
Netinterest income after impairment charge
for losses
Fee and commission income 8
Staff expenses 9
Depreciation and amoriisation 10
Other operating expenses I
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Information Technology Development Levy 12h
Income tax expense 12
Deferred tax recoverad
Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Exchange Rate Revaluation Gain
Revaluation Surplus 19

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the vear
attributable to the Owners of the Company

Earnings per <hare for profit attributable to
uwners of the parent
Basic and diluted earnings per share (kohs) 13

The financial statements on pages 3 to 6 were
approved by the Board of Directors an 21 March.
2019 and=i

hyeins Dag
merfﬁiq_;clsxmunauagjgﬂﬁﬁ

- —_—

31 December,

2018
N'ODO

1,245,103
(483.330)

761,773

(43,705)

T18.067
145,191
[344,366)

(30.950)
(303,685)

184,008
{1,820
(2,004)

{419.043)

131,029

131,629

131,029

131,029

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an inréstal pari of these financial skatements

31 December,

2017
N'000

1,477,552
(513,741)

963,811
(34,425)
(364 404)

555,890
154,862
(339,62R)

(35,777)
(322,246)

13,101
(131)
(278)

12,692

28,627
79,893

108,521

121,213

121,213

121,213




p HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMRER 2018

31 December, 3 December,
Note 2018 2017
N'000 N'000

Assefs

Cash and balances with banks 14 134,061 170,715
Financial assets held to maturity 13 200,000 200,000
Loans and advarices to banks 16 74049 420,271
Loans and advances to customers 17 4.352.327 4,441,335
Other assets and prepayments 18 99.009 201,686
Property and equipment 19 443,722 437 444
Intangible assets 20 7,449 13,027
Deferred tax - Asset 22 - 11,718
Total assets 6006978 5.896.192
Liabilities

Deposits from customers 21 2.850,906 2,534,196
Current income tax liability 12 2,094 278
Deferred income tax liability 22 - -
Other liabilities 23 228.565 255,107
Borrowings 24 615,250 QI8 500
Total liahilities 3,696,816 3,718,000
Equity

Share capital 15 041,319 G41.519
Share premium 25a | 80,630 180,630
Samtory reserve 26 549251 516,503
Regulatory risk reserve 109,208 109,298
Revaluation Reserve 108.521 108.521
Retained eamings S0CE 720,914 n21.611
Tortal equity SOCE i 2,310,162 2178102
Total equity and liabilities 6,006,978 5.896,192

The notes on pages 7 10 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2018.

Cash fiows [rom operating activilies
Inierest received

[nterest paid

Income tax paid

Net cashflows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Proceed from sale of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net intlow from issue of shares
Net Loan /loan repavment

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear

Cash and eash equivalents comprise:
Cash balances

Loans and advances to banks

Treasury bills

Borrowings

Note 31 Decembher,

31 December,

2018 2017
N'000 N'000
il (103,969) (1,467 .465)
1,245,103 1,477,552
(483,330) (513,741)
(2783 (21D
657,526 (505,766)
(31,226) (4,246)
443 86
(30,783) (4,160)
g 115,000
(220,205) (53,220)
(220,205) 61,780
406,538 (448,146)
697,932 1,146,078
1,104,470 697,932
14 334,061 170,715
16 570,409 420,271
15 200,000 200,000
24 - (93,054
1,104,470 697,932

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financizl statements



HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited
Mate to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

L. Genernl information

HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited was incorporated in Nigeria as 4 Limited Liability € Dmpany on
17th September 2003, under the name of Ril -Gvani Community Bank Limited. The nume of the
hank was changed to HASAL Microfinance Bank Limuted by special resolution on 13th May 2008,

The principal activity of the bank 55 the provision of micrefinance banking services such as savings.
lans and other financial services.

The addiess of its registered office and principal place of husiness is Plot 1652, Ahmadu Bello Way
Garki Districz, Abuja Nigeria.

The financidl statements (or the vear ended 31 December 2018 were authorised for lssue by the Board
of Directors on 21 March 2019

2. Summary of significan; nccounting policies

b
=

2.1
(n

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

These finuncial stalements have besn prepared in aceordince with |nternational  Financial Reporting
Suandards (IFRS) as issued by the IASB. Additional information required by national regulations s
includad where appropriate

Fhese are the second ammual finuncial swtements of the microfinance bank prepared in accordance
with IFRS and IFRZ

The impact of the wansition to IFRS on the company's reported {inancial position. financial
performance and cash Mows, including natre and effect of significant changes n accountme policies
i5 disclosed.

The fimancial statements are presented in Maira, which is the microfinance bank's functional and
presentation curreney, The figures shown m the financial statzments are stated in thousands.

The disclosuras  on risks arising from fnancial instruments are presented in the financial risk
management report contained in Note 7817.2

Changes In aceounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted ;

The following standards have been adopted hy the microfinznce bank for the first time for the
Tinancial year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and have a material impact on the microfinance
hank:

IAS 13, ‘Employee henefits’ was revised & June 2011, The changes on the Microfinance
bank’s accounting policies has been as follows: to immediately recognise all past service costs; and to
replace interest cost and expected retum on plan assels with a met interest amount that s
caleulated by applying the discount mie 1o the nét defined beneflt liability (asset).

Amendment o [AS 1, “Financial statement presemation” regarding other comprehensive income.
The main change resultivg from these amendments 5 o requiremenr for entities (o group items
presented in ‘other comprehensive  income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifisble  to profit or loss subsequently (reclussification  edjustments)  The impact of (s

amendment i& a change in the presentation of the Siatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

s,



HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited
Note to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(h) New standards and interpretations not vet adoprod

2.2

A mumber of new standards and amendments o standards and interpretations are effective o annual
peiods beginomg after | January 2008, and have not beai apphied in preparing these annual financizl
statements,  Mone of these j5 expiécted to have & significant effoct on the fnancial starements of the
microfinance bank,

IFRS 8. ‘Financial imsquments’, addresses the classification. mezsurement and recogniion of financial
assers and financial Labilities. The mam change 15 that, in cases where the fair wlue aplion & faken for
fnancial labilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity™s own ¢red misk s recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the Satement of profit or loss ond other comprehensive income, unless
this creares an accounting mismateh,

Amendments 10 IAS 32, Offsettine Fnancinl assets ond fnancial Hbilives, this clarifies e Tequirerents to
the oftset of financial ussets and financial liabilities  Soecifically, the amendments élarfies the
meaning of Currently hus o legel enlorecable nght of set - off and simultancous nealizaton and
settlement’

The directors of the microfinance bank do not anticpate: that the application: of these amendments to [AS
32 will have a significant impact on iis finencial starements as the microfinance dank does not hove any
financiai assets and finamewl habilities that qualify for offset,

Financial ussets and labilities

The microlmauce bank mitially recognizes financial nstruments on the date g which they are ongmated. All
financial nstruments are wimally recognized on the wade date ot which he microfinance  Bank
becomes o party o the coniraetue] provisions of the instrumient.

A financal asser or financial hability is messured initially at falr value olus, for fnancial insloements ol at
faur vailue through profit or loss, transaction costs thal are direedy surbutable to its acquisiion or issue,

2.2.1 Financial assets

()

The microfinance bank’s finencial assets were clhssad into the following IAS 39 categorics: loans and
receivebles and held-to-matuniy.

Munggement dewrmings the classification of s financial nstiuments ot nitial recognition depending on the
nature and purpose of financial assets and mandgement mtentions

Loans and receivables
Loans and recenables are non-demvative Tinancial assers with fived or determinable payments that are not
quoled i an active market. vther than:

I those that the microfinanee bank inends to sell immediaely or in the shan term, which are classified as
held for rading, and those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit
or loss; :

i1} Thuse that the microfinance bank upon initial recognition designates as manlsble for sale; or

i} those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its mingl mvestment, other than
because of credit detenoration.

Loans und receivables arceinitially recognized at fair value — which s the cosh consderation 10 originate or
purchase the loan and receivable includmg any mansaction costs — and measured subsequently ol amortizod
cost using the effective nterest rute method. Interest on loans and receivables are meluded in the profit or
foss and reported as ‘nterest meome’,



HASAL Microfinance Bank Iimited
MNaote to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2018

The microfinance bank’s financial assets classified as loans and receivahles sre cash balances, Ir'am
and advances 1o banks, loans and sdvanees to customers: and other assets,

(k) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-marurity financial assets are non-derivative  financial assets with fixed or  determinable
puyments and fixed maturities that the microfimnce bunk's management has the positive intention
and ability 10 hold te maturity, ether than:

IV those thut the microlinance bank upon initial recognition designates &3 at fair valve through profit
or loss;
if) those that the microfinance bank designates as available for sale: and

it} those that meet the definition of [oans and receivalles,

These are initally rocoprised at fair walue including direct snd incremental transaction cosis
and

megsured subsequently 4t amortised cost, using the effective micrest methed. Interest on held 1o
maturity finomeial assers are included in the profit or loss and reported as interest income’.

The microfinance bank's held 10 maturity investments are troasury hills at the reporting dates
presented.

Financial liabilities
The microfmance hank's holding in financial liabilities are those subsequently carried af amonised cost,

{a) Other financial liabilities

2323

Other financiz| liabilities that are not elassified as at faic value through profit or loss, fall into this
calcpory and are messured at amortised cost. Financial liahilities measured ar amortised cost ore
deposits from customers and other Habilities. Interest on "other Tinancial lahilities' are neluded i the
prafit or loss and reported as ‘interest expense’

Derecognition

Fnancial assers are derecognised when (he contruiius| rights 10 neceive the cash Tows from these
assets have ceased 10 exist or the assets have been tansfemed and substantially all the risks and
tewards of ownership of the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards
have not been wansfened, the microfinance bank tests control to ensure that continuing involvement
on the basis of any retiined powers of control does not prevent derecognition)  Financial
lighiliries are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.

2.2.4 Reclassification of finsncial assels

(2]

Reclassifications are made at fair value ss of the reclassification date. Fair value bevomes the new cost
or amortwed cosc s gpplicable, and no roversale of fair value gains or losses recorded before
reclassification Jate are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial sssets reclassitied 1o
loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined atl the reclassification date.
Furmher increnses in estimates’ of cash flows adjust effective nterest raies prospestivehy.

The microfinance bank may reclassify a financial instrument when its intentions and the
charzacteristies of the financial instrument changes

Offsetting {inancial ingtruments

Financial assets and liebilities are offict and the net amount reported i the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right w offser the recognised *mounts and
there 1s an intention to settle on a et basis or realise the asser and settle the liahility simultaneoushy



HASAL Mierofinance Bank Limited
Nole to the Finaneial Statements
For the year cruded 31 December 2018

24 Determination of fair value

(3%

For financial instruments traded in active markes, the determinution of far salues of fmancial pssets and
financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed ety
securities and quoted debt instruments on major cxchanges (for example. Nigerly Stock Exchange)

A [fnancial instrument s regarded us quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly dvailshle from an exchange, dealer. broker. mdustny group, prcng service or regulatory agency,
antl fhose prices represent actual and cegalarky occuming market ransoctnons on 4o arm's length basic If
the above critenin are not met. the market s regarded as being mactive, Indications that a mzrket is ingetive e
when there 15.a wide bid-offar spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread or there are few regent
transastions,

Forall other Financialinstruments. fair value 1s determined wsing valuation technigquas. In
these wehniques, fair values are estimated Mrom ubservable dat in respect of sundar (mancil instruments,
using models to estumate the present value of expested future cash fows or other valuation Lechniques. using
mputs existing at the measurernent dates,

The carmving amounts of the finanvia! sssels classified o5 Joans and receivables approsimate their far
values,

Impairment of financial assets

The microfinance bank assesses at the end of exch reporming period whether there is objeciive
evidence that a financiul asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A fnuneidl azset or group of financial
assers 15 impared and impairment lossey wre imcumed onky if there & objective cvidenee of impairment
i & result of one or more events that vecurred after the initin] recosnition of the assel (2 Toss event’) and
that loss event (or cveris) has an impact on the estimuled fulre cash flows of the financlal asset or
aroup of finuneil assets that can be reliahly estimated.

The eriteda that the microfinance bank uses o determine that there s ohiective evidence of an
impairment loss include extstence of tha following cirumstances;
+ Delinguency in contractual payments of principal or interest:
+ Cash flow difficulties experienced by the homower:
+ Breach of loan covenants or eonditions;
* Iniviation of bunkruptey proceadings;
Deterioration of the bomower's competitive position;
Daterioration in the value of collateral;
- Downgrading below investment grade leval;
- Sigmificant financial difficulty of the ssuer or oblizor;
* A breach of contract, such s a default or delinquency m ntersst or principal payments;
The lender. for econumic or legal rensons relating to the barrower™s Tanciak difficulty, gnmting 1o the
borrower a concession that the lender would nor otherwise consider;
* libeomes probable that the bormwer will enter bankruprey or other financial reonganisation:
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of fnancial difficulics; and
Observahle dat mdwating thet there is an measurable decrease in the estimated future cish fews Hrom
u porttolio of fimancal assets since the nitil recognition of those  assets although the decrease cannot vl
be identitied with the indnadoal finarcial sseets in the porifolio, meluding: sdverse changes in the payment
status of bormowars o the portfalio, and national or losal economic condimans that
Comelate with defaults on the ossets i the porfolio.

13



HASAL Mirrofinance Bank Limited
Note to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The muerofinance bank first assesses whether objective evidence of mipairment exists individually for
financial assers thar are individually significant, and indwidually or collectively for financial assets that are
ot mdividually significant, If the microfinance bank determunes thit no objective evidence of impairmen
exisls for an mdiidually assessed inuneml asser. whether significant or not, o mcludes the assetin o graup
of financil assets with similar vredit risk chamcieristics and collectively dssesses them for fmpainnent,
Azsets that are mdhadually assessed for mpairment and farwhich an impamment boss 15 ol continues 1o be
recognised are not meluded in a colléctive assessment of impairment,

The amount of the loss is measured as e diference hotween the assel’s carrying amount and the present
value of cstimated future cash flows (excluding furure credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s ongpmul effective mterest rate. The carmying amount of the ssset is reduced through
the use.of an allowance aecount and thz amount of the |oss is recoanised i profit or loss.

The caleulation of the presemt value of the estimated future cash flows of a coliateralised financigl asset
reflects the eash flaws that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and scllme the collaterl,
whether or not foreclosure 15 probable,

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impurment, financial assets pre grouped ¢n the basis of
similur credit nsk charactenistics [Le. on (he basis of the company’s grading process that considers asset
type. industry, geographical Jocstion, collateral type, past-due siatus and other relevant factors), Those
chamcienisiics are televant 0 the estmabion of future ensh flows for groups of such assets by beng
naicative of the debtors” dbility to pay all smoums due azcording to (lie conractual rerms of the asses
hemg evahated

Future cash flows m o group of finadcial assets that are collectively evaluated for mpairment are
estimated  on the basis of the enniractual cash Nlows of the assets i the group and histoncal Joss
experience for assets with eredit risk charactaristics similar 10 those i the sroup. Historical loss
expenience 15 adjusted on the basis of current observable data 1o refect the effects of current conditions thal
il nor atfeer the period on which the historical loss experence s based and to remove the cffects of
conditions m the historical perind that do not currenthy exist,

Estimates of changes m future cash flows for groups of assels are reflected and directionully consislent with
chinges i related observable data from penod to pesiod (for example. changes o inemployment rutes,
property prices, paviment status, or other factors indicative of ehunges 1 the probability of losses in the
group and their magnitude) The methodology and sssumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by he compiny to redoce any differcnces belween loss estimares and aemual loss
experiency,

When o loan 3 unzollectible, it i written 0T ageinst the relied provision Tor loan impairment.  Such
lonns are wrien off after all the necessary procedhures hive heen completsd and the ameunt of the loss
has been determined.

lmpairment  charges velaing 1o Joans and advances 1o banks and customens are clossified in
“mmpairment  charges for credit losses”. The impairment chiarge tor other accers is mcluded in other
Operanng expenses

.o Collateral
The microfinance bank obwins collatersl where appropriate, from customers to manage ther cradit nsk
exposure o the customer. The eoliateral normally ftakes the form of a hen over the customer’s assels and
gives tie company # claim on these assets for both exsting and future costomer in the event that the
customer defaulis

Collateral receivad i the form of cash i recorded on the stitement of Fnancial posiion with n
somesponding  lability. Collateral recsived in other form is not recorded on the statement of financial
position. These ilems are assgned to depasits: received from bank or other counterparties,  Any interest
payable or recenvable arismg 8 recorded a5 mitersst expense o iniersst income respectively.

11



HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited
Note to the Financial Statements
Feonr the vear ended 31 December 2ou8

1.7 Revenue recognition
(ap Mrerest incime and expense

2.9

ta)
i

ik

Interest meome and expense for all mierest-hisiring financial instruments are recopnicad within 'interest
ineame’ and “niterest expense” In the income statement uging the effective inlerest method.

Ihe effective interest method is 8 method of calenlting the amortised cost of o fTuncial asset or a
financial hobility and of allocating the mieresl wesine or interest expense over de relevant period. The
effective imterest mate is the rate (it esactly discounts  estimited  future cash payments or receipts
through the expecied life of the financal nsmument or. when appropriate; o shorter period fo the net
camrying amount of e finaneial dssar or timancial habiliy. When caleulating the effective mitorest rate,
the microfinance bank estimates cash flows considenng all contmetual terms of the finmedal insmument (for
example, prepayment options) bul does not consider futore credit losses. The caleulation includes all fees
and pemts paid or received between parties 1o the contract that are an ntegral part of the cffective
mterest rale, ransaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. W here the estimated cash Dows an
financil assets ate subsequently revised, other than mpairment losses, the carrying amount of the financisl
assers 13 adjustad to reflect sctual and revised stimared cash flows

Once o financial aset or a group of sioilo fnanclal dssds hiss bom wriney dewn a8 a result of an
unparment loss, miersstineome 13 recognized using the rate of intersst used to discount the future eash
fows bor the purpose of measuring the impairment loss

Fees and commsaion meome

Unless meluded in the efective interest calculation, fess apd commissions ore recogmized on an
accruls basis as the service 16 provided  Fees and commissions not mtegral to effective intarest mte fre
kodn application lees, commisaon on mmoever and other income,

Cash Mow statemeit

The statement ‘of cash flows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents ansing during the period from
PReraling activities, nvesting acinibes and fnancmg acovities, Cush and cash equivalenrs include highly
liguid investments.

The cash ows from operating activities are determined by using the indirect method. Net mcome is
theretore adjusted by non-cash uems. such s measurament gains or losses; chianges m provisions, aswell as
shanges from operaung assets and lnbilines. I addien. all ncome and expenses from cash transsetdons
that are atributable 1o mvesting or fnancing activaics are eliminated, Intérest reveived or paid is Classificd
o operating cosh flows,

The cash flows from investing and fancing activities e determmed. by using the mdirect method. The
microfinance bank's assgnment of the cash flows to operating, mvesting and  financing category
depends on the merofinance bank's busmess model (mangesment approach)

For the pumposss of the cash flow sutement, cosh and cash equivalents include cash hafnces,
treasury bills and loans and advances 1o banks.

Leases
Leases wie divided intw fnsnee leases and operating leases. The

mitcrofinance bank 15 the [essee

Opsaing ledse

Leases in which a significont portion of e risks wnd rewards of ownership are retained by another
party, the lessor, are classified as operating leascs. Paymenis. including prepayments, made onder
opeating leases (net of any ncentives received from the lessor) are charzed %o the mcome statement o a
straight-line. ‘hasis over the period of the laase. When an operating lease s lormunated  before the lese
perind has expired. any payment required to be made ta the lessor by way of peualty s recognised §s
o expense in the penod in which termination tukes |Hlace,



HASAL Micrafinance Bank Limited
Naote to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 91 December 2018

(1)

i)
t)

i

2.10

Finance legse

Leuses of assers where the company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
elassified as finance leases,

Finance leases are capilalized at the lease™s commenciment at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum [ecase payvments. Each lease pavment is allocated
berween the liability and finance charges so 23 to-achieve a constamt tare on the finance halance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charzes. are included in deposits from
banks or deposits from eustomers depending e the counier party. The interest element of the finance
cost is chagad 10 the thcome statement over the lease perod so as 10 produce & constant perindic rate
ef bilerest on the remaining bulance of the lisbility for each period.

The microfinanee bunk i« the lesser

Oiperating lease

When assets are subject to an operating lesse, the assels continge 1o he vecopnized as property and
euipment based on the nature of the asset. Lease incoma is recognized on a straight |ine hasis

Finznce lenze

When assets are held subject to o finance lease. the related asset is derecognized and the present
value of the lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lesss) i tecognized as a
receivable. The aifference between the eross receivable and the present value of the receivable is
recognized as uneamed fmance income Lease mcome i reoognized over the term of the lease wsina
the net investment method (before tax), which reflects 2 constant periodic rate of retum,

Property snd cquipment

All property and squipment used by the micrafinance bank is stuted at historical cost less accumuleted
depreciation and accumulated impairmeant losses. if any. Cost includes expenditure that is
direetly uiributable o the acquisition of tie ftems.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognized as o separate
asael, as epproprate. only when it is probable that future economic benetits associated with the itern
will flow to the microfinance bank and the cost of rfhe item can be measured reliak] ¥. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized, All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged 1o olher operating espenses during the fnancial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation 1 caleulated using the swaight-ine method to sllocate their cost to their residual
vithies over their estimated useful lives, usinz the following annual rates:

Building 24

Fumniture and fimgs 25%
Maofor vehicle 25%
Plont and machinery 3%
Cummunication and office eguipment 33%

Land is not depreciated, The asseis” residual values and nseful lives are reviewed annually, and
ndjusted  If approprigte.  Assets wrereviewed forimpairment whenever events or
changes incircumstances indicate that the carrying amounr may not be recoverable, Impairment
charges are recognized in the profic or loss under other operating expenses.

An osser’s camying amount i written down immediately. to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carmang amount {2 gremter than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount s the
higher of the asser”s fair value less costs o sell and valug in ise.

Gains anid lossey on disposals are determined by compa ing proceeds wich carrying amount, These are
included in other operating expenses in the profit or loss.
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211

12

2.13
(a)

Intangible assets

Computer sottware

Costs associated with mainmining computer sofiware programmes are tecognizad as an CApEnse a5
mourmed. Development costs thar are directly atrbutable o the design and testing of demifisble and
unsque software produets controlled by the mierofinance bank, are recognized 45 ftingible dssets when
the following crteria are mew

It s technically feasible to complete the software product 50 that it will be svailable for s
Management mtends to:'complete the software product and use or sdll it
There 1= an ahlity 10 use or sell the software produer;

It can be demonstrated how the software product will gencrate probiubie fiture Goonomic
benefits;

Adequate techmical. finaneial and other resources to complate the dévelopment and to wse or 5&l]
the spftware produst  are available: and

The expenditure aitribetable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measared,

Subsequent  expendities oncomputer software isCapitalised only when it inereases the
futurc econcmic henefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relares,

Direst computer softwire devclopment cosi recognised s intanzgible assets are amorised on the
straight-line basis over 3 years and sre camied at cost lsse anv accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impaitment  |osses. The comying amount of capitalised computer sofiware s reviewed
ansoally and i wntten down whep the ¢amving amount oxcesds its recoverahle  amount

T paicment of non-tinanecial assets

Assets are reviewed tor mmipairment whenever events or changes in circumetances indicste thor tha
carrying amount may not be recoverable  Additivnally. intangible assets that hove an indefinite useful hife
are pot subject to amortisation and  are tested annually for Impairment.  An impiirment loss s
rewognised for e amount by which the asset's carmving amount exceads |is recoverable amount. The
recovershle amount is the higher of an asset’s fur valie Jess costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposss  of GssessIng. mmpawment, assets are grouped at the lowest Jeévels for which there are
scparately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating wiits). [heimpatrment testalso can
be performed on a singfe asser when the Twr value less cost o sell or the value 10 use can be determined
reliobly:  Non-tinanciz|l  adsets that suffered (mpaitment arereviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each réporting dare.

Impairment lnsces recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for uny indications that
the |oss has decreased or no longerexists. An unparment loss 15 reversed if there has besn a change
in the eshmatesused fo determine the recoverable amount. An impaimment loss is reversed only o the
extent that the asset’s Camving amount does not exceed the carmving amount that would have  heen
datermined, net of depreciahon or amertisation, If no impainoent loss had been recogmized.

Income  paxalion

CirreEnt income lax

Incore iax s calculated on the besis of the appheable: tax law w the respeclive junsdiction and is
recogmised as an expense (income) for the period EXCEpL 1o the extent that current 1a% related to ftem s that
ore charged or credited in other comprehensive income  or dirsctly o eguity. In these
circumstances, current tax i charged or credited w otha compreiensive income or to equity (for
example, Sument tax en equity instruments for which the entity has clected o present gains and
losses in other comprehensive income).
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(b} Deferred income 1ax
Deferred  ncome max i provided in full. usimg the ligbility method, on all swemporary
differences amsing between the tay bases of assets and lizhilities and their GHTYING amours in the
fimanciul smtements. Deferred income tax 5 determined usmg tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacred by the date of the statement of financial position  and  arc
expected to apply when the related deferrud income wx ssset is realised or the deferred meome tax
lability 1§ setiled,

D=fermed ax labilines are recognised for all wxable emporary differences,

cxeept:

- When the deferred wx lLability arises from the initinl recoznition of goodwill or of an Gssel
or Hability in a-transaction that 15 net 4 business combmation  and, &t the time of tha trunzoction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor wxable profit or loss

- In respect of taxable temporary differences  associzied  wilh fnvestments  in subsidianes,
associates and {mierests In joint yentures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporany
differénces can be

confrolled and it i< probable that the temporary differences will not reverse i the faresecahle
future.

Deterred tax assets are recogmised for oll deductible temporary  differences, carry forward of
unused tuy credits and unused tay losses, (o Uie extent thar it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unwsed tax
credits and unused tax losses cin be urilisad except;

- Where the deferred tax asset relating to- the deduetible temporary difference anses frony the initial
recagnition of an assel or hability ina mansaction that & nota business combination and, it the time
of the transaction, aflicets neither the accounting profit nor taxable prolit or loss

- I orespest of  deducuble  temporary  differences.  assuciated  with  investmenss o
subsidiaries, asseeales and interests m joint ventures. deferred tax nsscts are recogmsed only 1o the
extent that it is probuble that the temporary differences will reverse n the foresccable future aid
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The principal temporary difforomees  arige from depreciation of property, plantand
cquipment provisiens for pensions and other post-renrement henefits and camy-forwards, However,
the deferred moome fox 5 ool accounted for i it arises from inhial recognition  of an assot
ar labslity 1 A mansaction other than o business combination (hat at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor tuxible profit or loss,

The tax cffects of camy-lorwards of unused losses, unused tax credits and other deferrad wx assets are
recognised when it i3 probable st Future faxable profit will be available against which these
losses and vther lemporary differences: can be utilised.

The amount of deferred 1ax provided is hasen on the expected manner of redlisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the asset or lability and i not discounted. Deferred tax assets are reviewisd
at each statement of financial pesition dare and are reduced o the extent that it is ao longer
probable that the related wx Benefit wall be realized

Deferred  income max 15 provided on temporary  differences  ansing  from  investments  n
subsidiaries and associates. except where thie timing of the mversal of the tomporany difference iy
comtrelled by the microfingnee barnk and 1t s probable thiar the difference will not reverse in the
foresecable future, The microfinance hank has no investments (n subsidiaries or associates

Deferred tax related to fair veluc re-measurement of oquity instruments, which arc recognised i other
conmprehensive mcome, 15 also recognised in the other compreliensive income and subsequently it the profit or
loss together with the deferred gain or loss. The micrefinance bank had no equity investments at the reporting
dale.
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Employee benefits
Cefined contribution scheme

A defined contribunian plan is a pensien plan under which the company pays fixed contributions inta separgte
entity, The company has no legal or constructive ohlizations to pay further conmbutions if the fund does not
hold sutficient assets 10 pay wll emplovess the benefits relating (o empioyes service in the current and prior

periods,

The microfinance bark psys comributions io publicly or privatzly adminiscered pension wsurance plang on 4
contractu) basis. The microfinance bank has no furcher payment obligations onee the contributions have Been
paid. The contributions are recegnised as emplovee befiefit expense when they are due. Frepaid contributions
are recognised as an asser 10 the exient that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments 1e available
Amounts outstanding as ar vear end are included in the retiremient benefit obligation balance on the statement
of financial pesition.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising as conscquences of past events where 1t is probable
that o transfer of economic henefit will be necessany to scitle the abligation, and it ean be relinbly estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that in cutflow will be required in setderment is
ditermincd by considering the class of chligations a5 5 whole. A provision is recagmiced even if the likeliiood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations miay besmall,

Provisions arc measured atf the present value of the expenditures expectad (o be required 10 settle the aklisation
usIng a pre-tas rate that reflects surrent market assessments of the fime value nf money and the rsks specific tn
the obligation. The increase in the provision due (0 pussage of time is recognised as inerest expense.

Share capital
Shire issie costs

Incremental costs directly airnbutable w th 1ssuzof new shares or cplions or to the sequisinen of a business
are shown in equity as a deduction. net of tax, from the proceads,

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordimary shares are recognisad m erpuity in the period in which they are approved by the

micrefinance bank’s sharchelders.

Dividends fur the yeor that are declared after the date of Uie statement of financial position sre dealt with in the
subsaEjuent svents note:

Remined carmings

Retamnad camings comprise the undistnbuted profits trom previeus vears, which Mave not been
reclassified to the other ressrves.

Statutory reserve

The central bank of Nigeria requires ull microfinance banks te make an i) APPrOPRUUen 10 a statuiery
reserve. As stipulated in Section 18 1.7 of the revised rezulatory and supervizory guidelines Tor
Micratinance banks in Nigera

- An appropriaticn of S0% of profit after tax is made 1f the statutary reserve is less than the paid-up share
capital,

= 25% of profitafter tax it the reserve is 30% of more ard
- 12 5% of profit after tax if the sttutory esierve is oreater than the paid-up share capital



HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited
Note to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 3¢ December 2018

Regulatory nsk reserve

The company determings its loan loss provisions based on the requirements of IFRS. The
difference between the loan loss provision as determined under TFRS and the provision as
determined under Nigerian Prudential guideline ( as presenibed by the Central Bank of Nigeria) is
recorded in this reserve. This reserve is non distributable.

Provision
Classification Requirement | Basis
Performing 1% Titerest / Principal not due
Fass and Watch 5% Interest / Princspal over due by
I day but less than 30 davs
Substandard 2004 Interest / Principal over due by
31 days but less than 60 days
Doubrtiul 3% Interest / Principal over due by
61 days but less than 90 davs
Lost L00% Inlerest | Principal over due by
91 days and above

The results of the application of Prudential Guidelines and the impainment determined for these
assets under IAS 39 arc compared. The IAS 39 determined impairment charge is always included
in the profit or loss in all casey,

Where the Prudentinl Guidelines provision for leans and advances balances is greater, the
differcnce is appropriated from retained eamings and included in a non-distributable reserve
"Rezulatory Risk Reserve” (RRR),

Where the IFRS computed impairment is greater and there is no credit balance in the RER, no
appropialion is made and the IFR3 compuied amount is recognized in the profit or loss. Where
there is a credit halance in the RRR, a transfar is made to the retained earnings w the exteni of the
difference between IFRS impairments and NGAAP provision figures,
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Critieal accounting estimates and judgements

The Microfinance bank’s IFRS financial statements and its financial results are influenced
by eccountng policies, assumptions, estimates and management judgement, which
nevesswily have (o bc made in the course of preparation of these IFRS financisl
statements. The microfinance bank makes estimaies and assumptions that affeet the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial vear. All estimates and
assumptions required in conformity with [FRS are best estimates undertaken in accordance
with the applicable standard. Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a continuous
basis, and are based on past cxperience and other factors. including expectations with
regard to future events. Accounting palicies and management's judgements for certain
items are especially eritical for the microfinance bank's results and financial situation due
to their materiality.

Impairiment charges on financial assets

Ihe microfinance bank reviews its loan portfolios for impairment on an ongoing basis. The
microfinance bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that arc individuvally significant, and for collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant together with significant assels
assessed individually as not impaired. Impairment provisions are also recognized for losses
not specifically identified but which, experience and observible data indicate, are present
in the portfolio at the date of assessment.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assels with credil risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairmen similar to those in the portfolio, when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions vsed for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience,

The use of historical loss experience is supplemented with significant management
judgment 1o assess whether current economic and eredit conditions are such that the actual
level of mherent losses is likely to differ from that suggested by historical experience. In
normal circumstances, historical experience provides ohjective and relevant information
from which to assess inherent loss within each portfolio. In other circumstances, historical
loss experience provides less relevant information about the inherent loss in a given
portfolio at the statement of financial position date, for example, where there Lave been
changes in economic condinons such that the most recent trends in risk factors are not
fully reflected 1n the historical information. In (hese circumstances, such risk facturs are
taken into account when caleulating the appropriate levels of impairment allowances, bv
adjusting the impairment loss derived solely from historical loss experience.

The detailed methodologies. areas of estimation and judgzement applied in the calculation
of the micrefinance bank’s impairment charge on financial asscts are set ot in the
financial risk management section.
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018.

Financial risk management

HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited defines risk as the possibility of losses or profits forezone, which may be caused
by internal or external factors. The microfinance bank’s aim s lo achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
returm and minuise potential adverse effects on the microfinance bank's finsncial performance.

Risk management is carried oul by (he microfinance bark's Finance department under palicies approved by the Board
of Direciors. The microfinance bank's Finance department provides cenmral oversight of risk management across the
microfinance bank to ensure that sk are mitigated. The risks arising from financial instruments to which the
microfinance bank is exposed are financial risks, which includes credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Classification of financial assets and Liabilities
The microfinance bank's financial instruments ar= classified as stated below:

Held to [.oans and Other financial
Maturity receivables Liahilities
31 December 2018 N'ODO N'00D N'DO0
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 334,001
Financial assels held to matrity 200,000
Loans and advances to banks 570,409
Loans and advances o customers 4,748,349
(Other assets Qo009
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 2,850,906
Orther liabilities 228,565
534,061 5,417,767 3079471
Held to Loans and Other financial
Maturity receivables Liabilities
31 December 2017 N'000 N'000 N'000
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 170,715
Financial assets held to maturity 200,000
Leans and advances o banks 420,271
Loans and advances to customers 4 ROT 685
Other assels 201,686
Financial iiabilities
Deposits frum customers 2,534,196
Other liabilities 255,107
370,715 5519042 2.789.304

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Held 1o Loans and Other financial
Maturity receivables Liabilities
31 December 2016 N'000 N'boo N'000
Financial aszets
Cash balances 121,146
Financial assels held to maturity | 35,809
Loans and advances to banks 270,124
Loans and advances to custamers 42600458
Other assets
Financial liabilities
Deposis from customers 2,796,085
Onher liabilities 379245
3o 955 5,130,172 3175330

Credit risk

Management of ¢redit risk

Credit Risk 1s the risk that the microfinance bank will not ba able to recover funds and suffer losses hecause another party is unabla
wt Lnwilling to meet contractual obligations to the microfinance bank when due. The principal bankinz activities that ereate
exposure to credit risk include loans and advances to banks, loans and advances 1o cuslomers.

The following prineiples guide credit risk management across the microfinance hiamks

Generally, the mierofinance hanks runs & end-to-end credir risk manageinent process flow for Its louns and 2dvances (o customers

The Relationship officer zenerate new loan customers and carries out the initial risk assessment.

Afterwards. the branch Credit Committes meets, delinerates and mike mdividual and collective recommendations. The completed
credit request document is forwarded to management eredit commitiee for appraval,

The Bank's risk philosophy on risk limit control | Single Obligor is 3% of SHF for group and 1% for individuals), the Bank is
focused on maximizing business opportunities while minimizing adverse risk. (Out comes, thereby enh ancing shareholder vatue

by efTectivelv balancing risk and reward.

The panciples that guide the management of our fisks across the enterprise are:

Effoctive balancing of risk and reward by aligning risk appetite with husiness steategy, diversifying risk, pricing appropriately for
risk, mitigating risk through preventive and detective controls,

Shared responsibiliry for risk management as husiness segments are responsible for aclive maragement of their risks, with
dircction and oversight provided by the Management, and other corpordale support unit.

Business decisions that are based on an understanding of risk as we perform rigorous assessment of risk in relationships,
products, transactions and other busingss activities,

Avoid activities that are not consistent with sur values, Code of Conduct or Policies, which contributes to the protection of our
FepLtatIon.

The noves vn pages 7 to 43 are an intepral part of these financil statements
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Proper focus on custoniers reduces our risks, by knowing our customers and ensuring that
the services we provide are suitable for and understoed by our customers.

Risks Appetite

Risk Appetite Statement defines the amount and type of risk the Bank is willing to accept in
the pursuit of its strategic objectives, while recognizing a range of possible outcomes a
business plans arc implemented. In arriving at the risk appetite. the enterprise risk framework
which is approved by the Board / Management combines a top-down view of its capacity to
take risk with a bottem-up view of the business risk profile requested and recommended by

Risk Governance and Structure

Our overall risk governance structure shown below illustrates the rales and responsibilities of
the various stakeholders in our enterprise risk management program. Gur risk governance
structure is reviewed regularly against industry best practices and regulatory guidelines.

Risk Management Framework

A part of the oversight function of the Board of Directars. is the development of the Risk
Management Framework. This framework provides guidelines for the Bank’s risk
identification, measurement, monitaring and reporting. The Board achieves this through its
Board Risks Management Committee which is assisted by the Management Risk Committee,

The day to day execution of the framework is a function of the Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM), under policies that are approved by the Board of Dircctors. The ERM of the Bank
identities, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Bank’s strategies
business units.

The Board Risk committee, Board Audit Committee and the Board Credit Commities assisted
by Management Committees, provide written principles for overall risk management as well as
written policies covering specific areas. These include interest rate nsk, credit risk and
liquidity risks. In addition, the Bank audit committees, assisted by the internal audit
department, have an oversight role in ensuring that appropriate risk management processes are
in place and that these processes are adequate and effective. The department is responsible for
the independent review of risk management funclions and the control environment.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically and at least once in a vear
upon Board approval to reflect changes in markets, products and market practice.

Risk Identification

Early identification of risks is fundamental to the risk management process within the Bank.
We are deliberate in proactively identifying risks inherent in our products, processes,

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integrat part of these financial statemeats
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activities and niew markets. This is in addition to the periodic review ol risk profile of existing
products, processes and activities. To expedite identification of potential risks. the Bank considers
events as they relate Credit, Operations, Market, Liquidity, Legal, Compliance and Stratesic Risks.
The process 15 achieved through!

Approved processes and templates [or documenting identified risks

A stratege framework for the assessment of nsks associated with new ventures (markets and products)
Periodic review of existing products

Defined Key Risk Indicators

Periodie risk and control self-assessment exercisc

Risk Measurement

The Bani’s ability to measure risks 15 a key component to its enterprise-wide risk ma nagement
process. Certain measurement methods are common to a number of risk types, while others may only
apply 10 a single risk type. While quantitative risk measurement is important, we also place reliance
on qualitative factors. Qur measurement models and techniques are continually subjected ta
independent assessment for appropriateness and reliability. For those risk types that are difficult to
quantify, we place greater emphasis on qualitative risks factors and assessment of activities to pange
the overall level of risk in order to determine if it is within our risk appetite, or not.

Expected Loss
Staustizally, expected loss represents losses that are expected 1o oceur in the normal course of
business m & given period of time.

Unexpected Loss and Economic Capital

Unexpected loss 15 a statistical estimate of amount by which actual loszes can exceed losses over a
specified time horizon, measured at s specified level of confidence. On an enterprise-wide basis, our
estimate of the unexpected loss associated with our business deterntines our economic capital.

Sensitivity Analysis and Stress Testing

Sensitivity analysis and stress testing are risk measurements lechniques that help us ensure the risks
we take remain within our risk appetite and that our level of capital remains adequate. Sensitiviry
analysis mvolves varying a single factor (e.z a model input or specific sssumptions) to assess the
unpact on various risk measures.

Siress testing generally involves consideration of the simultancous movements in a number of Tisk
factors. It is used to measures the level of potential unexpected losses for Credit, Market Operational
and Liquidity Risks.

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Under potential adverse conditions, stress testing plays an important role in supporting overall
capital management and adequacy assessment processes. Our enterprise-wide stress testing program
utilizes stress scenarios featuring a range of severities based on unlikely but possible adverse market
and economic events. These commeon stress scenarios are evaluated across the organization, and
integrated to develop and enterprise-wide view of the impacts on our financial results and
requirements. This program uses macro-economic projections and applics them as stress impacts on
the organization viz-a-viz the various risk types.

Operatiomal Risk

People Risk
This is the risk arising from failure of employees or employer, conflict of interest or other internal
Iraudulent behawvior.

Impact on Business

ruman actions (accidental or deliberate) can put the business at risk notwithstanding Aawless
processes and technology. This could lead 1 financial loss, as well as reputational damage, hence,
not being able to meet or exceed stakcholders’ expectations.

Mitigation measures

Zero tolerance of staff non-integrity issues and fraud.

Effective background checks and through confirmation process on new hires,
A disciplinary commitice that deals with and resolves employvees” issues,
Meecting training and development needs to staff,

Proper segregation of duties.

wn wh MR wnowon

Technology Risk
This is the risk of falling 1o implement or develop, as well as operate. the Bank's technology

Impact on Business

This could manifest in defective hardware or software, failures in other technology such as networks
or lelecommumications, breaches in 1T security, or lack of support from the manufactures

Mitigation measures
§ Regular IT audit and control,

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Comprehensive service level agreements with service providers,

External Risk
This is the risk arising from fraud or litigation by partics external 1o the firm. as well as lack
of physical security for the institution and its representatives.

Impact on Business
This could lead 1 poor service, reputational damage and financial loss to the Bank.

Mitigation measures
Enforcing sanctions for breach of contracts.
Strict adherence to the Bank s outsourcing policy.

Market Risk and Liquidity Risk

The Bank’s market risk management process allows discipline risk taking within a framewark
of well-defined risk appetite that enables the Banlk to enhance sharcholder value while
maintaining competitive advantage through effective utilization of risk capital.

Liquidty risk 1s the risk that the Bank does not have financial resources to meet its obligations
as they fall due, or will have to meet the obligations at an excessive cost. The objectives of the
Bank's liquidity risk management is to ensure that all anticipated fiunding commitments can
be met when due and that access to funding sources is coordinated and cost effective.

Impact on Business

This could result in significant financial loss from reduction in net interest income and
impairment of interest rate-related instruments. In addition, there is an insolvency and
eventual reputational risk that could unfold.

Mitigation Measures

Market Risk

Ensuring the implementation of market risk and the board policies including credit limits,
Monitoring and provision of relevant information and data on liquidity, pricing and interest
rates 1o the MD/CEQ.

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an infegral part of these financial statements
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Continual elevation of risk appetite, communicated through risk limits and overall
effectiveness of the market management process. The bank does not undertake any risk
that cannot be managed, or risks that are not fully understood especially for few products.
Where the bank takes on any risk, full consideration is given to regulatory
pronouncements guidelines or policies. The risk taken must be adequately compensated by
the anticipated reward.

Liquidity Risk

Adherence to liquidity risk tolerance appropriate for the mierofinance business and in line
with the central Bank’s Microfinance Policy guidelines.

Alignment of the business undertaken with resultant liquidity risk exposure in
performance management and in produet approval process.

Sound proceszes for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling liguidity risk,
including projections [or cash flows arising from assets. liabilities and off-balance sheet
items over an appropriate period of time.

Clear funding strategy providing effective diversification in the sources and tenor of funding.

Ranking and prioritizing funding sources by stability.

Early warning indicators to aid prompt identification of liquidity risk such as
concentrations in either assets or liquidities, and deterioration in quality of eredit portfolio.

Proper und effective portfolio management. The banks’ liquidity ratio as at vear end was 1.9 :1

Compliznee Risk
Compliance risk is the risk to earnings, capital or reputation occurring from vielations or

Impact on business
This could result in significant financial loss, impairment of shareholders *funds and/or

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Mitigation Measures

To cnsure effective management of compliance risk. the bank:

*  Develops worksheets. forms and checklists to assist the staff, as they perform their
Jobs, in complying with laws, regulations and rules:

¢  Creates an extensive profile of laws, regulations and guidelines with the company
must comply, 1.2., the nule book:

*  Analyses the impact of new and amended legal and regulatory requirements, and
implements such requirements;

®  Tracks changes to federal and state laws and regulation. and disseminates relevant
imformation across the company; and

*  Takes prompt and appropriate action to compliance problems that are identified
through self-assessments. internal or external compliance audits.

Information security
This is the risk of confidentiality, integrity and availability of bank’s information assets,

Impact on business
Information assets are critical to HASAL Micro Finance bank's operation and the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of these assets are crucial to the effective and

Mitization Measures

* Development of a risk assessment methodology that that enables the bank to carry out
risk assessment ol its information assets.

* Documenting and standardizing the processes with the bank while building
appropriate controls into these processes.

Legal risk
Our ability to identily, mitigate and manage the legal risks in our activities and business
transactions continues to improve.

Impact on business
Increased costs, loss ol revenue, abuse and/or intellectual property, distraction, negative
brand equity, strained relationships with customers, employees. service providers,

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Mitigation Measures

faimess. Transacting, bespoke documesntation and clarity in documentation and agreements
are some of the measures taken to prevent possible conflicts, while engaging external
counsel with proven competence in the prosecution of the hank’s claims against third
parties and in the conduct of the bank’s defense, and exploring alternative dispute
resolution mechanisms, among others.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or ather credit enhancements
The microfinance bank's maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 respectively, is represented by the net carrying amounts of its financial
assets in the statement of {inancial position

Credil concentrations

The microfinance bank monitors corcentrations of credit risk by sector and by
geographical location.  An analysis of concentrations of credit risk at 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017 respectively, is set out below:

The notes on pages 7 te 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

Industry sector

The following 1able breaks down the company's credit exposure af carrying amounts {(without taking
info account any collateral held or other credit support), as categonsed by the industry sectors;

31-Dec-18

Financial assets

Cash and balances with banks
Financial assets held to maturity
Lozns and advances ta banks
Loans and advances to customers

31-Dec-17

Finanvial assets

Cash and balances with banks
Financial assets held to maturity
lLoans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

ieographical seetors

Retail and Finaneial Public sector  Other sectors
Trade Services
N'000 N0 N'O00 N"000)
- 334,061 ; ,
- 200,000 =
: 570,409 3 ‘
4,748,349 - : -
4,748,340 1,104,470 -
Retail and Financial Public sector  Other sectors
Trade Services
N0 N'D0O0 N'UD0 N'000
- 170,715 - -
- 2011000 - -
s 420,271 : <
4,807 GRS -
4,897,685 790,986 -

The geographical concentration risk of the microfinance bank's for its financial assels carried 4t
amartised cost is Abuja. The counterparties are majocly based in the Abuja part of Nigeria as the

microlinance bank is licensed 1o operate in Abuja arca only.

Loans and advances

The eredit quality of Toans and advances to customers is summnrisad us follows:

Loans and advances 1o customers

Individual & Collectively impaired
Carrying Amount

31-December, 31-December, 31-December.

2018 2017 2016
N'OO0 N0 N'OO00
4,748,349 4,897,685 4.260,048
4,748,349 4,897,685 4,260,048
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FOR THE YEAR LNDED M DECEABER. 2018,

trpamnent 4l lowarice

3| Decembaer,

2008
R LI N ="M
Speeifle Collective laral
AL Slant of the perasd a3 il 47410 11,312
Fransier (o repulutory réserva 1109 20 [ B, 24
Wormmen=afl (71,200 (71200
Beocovery whilten hack forthe vear (8.449%) [h. 408}
{harge for the vear a7 Q133 43,70
Moend of the penod 3477 AfE44 296,022
3 Decemlr.
Pl
Imparmieat allow anve R R N0
Speeifle Callective 1 ol
AL Stk of Lhe perusl 118,867 28 T 144,547
Interest in Susperse 24,127 4,127
Charge for Lhe yrir 150,907 | %588 68408
Impairetsent allow jnce 493401 44,289 538,190
Adpestroient to frpasmment alkswinde 14,338 g 18 i AT 457
AL ERd of the peripd S1%,137 474N 365 647
Laosans and adyances to customers: nelther past due nor impdined
Ihe credn q‘ualr!} aF the portfoho' ol losns and sy unees thal wene
néither past due aor impained are sssessed by reference 1o the
custorner's ability 1o pay' based on loss esperence. They are nol
rated based orlany Rrmal interanl ratidg syilem
Lo wnd advamees (o enstomers: collectively amd imdivicuailly impaired loans
Eoane and advances 1o custoniers: callectvely impaired
31 December, 31 Decomber.
2018 207
N0 MU
Urpss amount 4,745,349 4807 L85
Cullzetive impiinnemt %135 LES589)
et mmeunt 4,739 315 LRTU S

These are impaired louns which sre sssessed bsed on shared Hik charmeteriatios of the Tnans, Ihey are assessed fin

tmpasrrnent oo collective basis

Laans and advances o custamers: individuaily impairsd
31 December,

3 December,

1% W17
Ao N0
Ciriss. ol 4,745 349 4,397 6K%
Soecific imparnnen (3370 150,907y
st armuunt 1777 433677
Credit qualiny of cosh and cach equivalenis
The cradit quality of'cash anid cash equivalenis that were neither
past due noc irmpaned can be ussessed by reference 16 sling agency
desiznation dsul 2] December 2018, 31 Decembear 2017 amd 3
Bregeiber, 20116,
Ise Microfinance Bank onhy momyems cash and eash equivaleris
with banks and financial institetions m NMigera with srone firineal
ratihgs | Auguste Rating), The nating of thie banks and ciher
Mnancial insilutions are reviewed By management an a pericidic
basas.
Cagh Treasurry Balances and
halnces bilts placements
with hank
31 Drecemibir 2018 N i) 00
AAA Lk T JOH NG E] ?n;-_.l;'ﬂ'
Tty
Ltirated
I Presember 2007
ANA 10715 300,000 430,27
AA+
Linsztad
H December 2006
A 171144 1133800 L 5



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018,

4.3 Liguidity risk
Liyuidity risk is the risk that the microfinance bank will not be able to meet its maturing finaneial obligations as
they fall due. The nature of banking activities requires the microfinance Fank to maintain adequate liquid assets
to meets maturing deposit obligations,

The overal| objective of the microfinance bank's liquidity risk framework is to maintain sufficient liguidity in
vrder Lo ensure safe and sound banking operations, In managing liquidity risk, the manasement of the
microfinance bank, which bears overall responsibility for liquidity risk, cnsures that adequate funds are invested
to match maturating deposit liabilities.

4.3.2 Liguidity oap analvsis

The table below analyses the microfinance bank's financial assets and fnaneial liabilities into relevant Mty

groupings hased on the remaining period at the measurement date to the contraciual matunty date,

Carrying I81-365
31 December 2018 amaount 0)-30 days 31 - 180 days days
N0 N'hon N'O0 N'00
Financial assels
Cash and balances with banks 334,061 334,061
Finuncial asscts held to maturity 240,000 200,000
[.oans and advancss to banks 570,409 570,409
Lecans and advances 1o customers 3,748,349 469 453 2 860,310 1.318,585
Cither assets 4. (09 99,004
Total financial assets 3,051 828 1.672.932 2,960,310 1,318,585
Financiai lishilities
Deposits from customers 2 830,906 1,046,612 1,711,888 Q2 406
Mher liahilicies 2218565 228,565
Total financial liabilities 3.079.471 1275177 1.711,888 02406
Gap (assets - liahiliries) 2.872.357 3407 755 1.248.422 1,226,179
Carrving 1§1-365
31 December 2017 amount 0-30days  31- 180 days days
N'000 N0 N0 N}
Finanecial assets
Cash and balances with banks 170,715 170,715
Financial assets held to maturity 200,000 200,000
Loans and advances o banks 42027 420,271
Loans and advances to customers 4.897 685 275,893 3113072 1508.720
Other assets 201,686 201,686
Total financial assets 5,890,357 1,268,565 3113072 1,508,720
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 2,534,196 812,556 1.613,045 101,543
Other liabilities 235,107 255,107
Total financial liabilitics 2,789,304 1,074,663 1,613,048 101,593
Goap (assels - liabilities) 3,101,053 193.901 L500,024 1,407,127

‘The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
2 E
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HASAL MIICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEC EMBER, 2015,

Murket risk

Market risk 13 the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates will have adversely affeets the profitability and value of the
imucrefinance bank. The microfinunce bank's objective of mangging marker risk is directed towards effech ve monitoring of price sensitive
finaneial inctruments. The microfinance bank also ensures a good mix of 1S investments in finuneisl assets and financial labilifes so 82 16
miaximlze et income on such investiment. Market risk arises from loans and advances to banks and customers treasury bills und deposics from
customars aetivinies of the microfinance bank.

I micratinance bank exposure 10 market nisk 15 in interest rate risk,

The microfinance bank is not significantly exposed w foreign exchange risks as it does not (rade in toreegn currencies and s most of its
operations ure denominzted in the Nigerian Naira. It i also nor significantly expased to other prive risks because of the nature of its investime
portiohio,

Measurement of marker risk
The microfinanee bank's major measurement techmigue used to meastre and control market nsk 15 outhned below,

Sensitivity unalyses
Ihe interest rate risk sensitivity analysis reflects the expected financial impact from a perzeniage change in iterest rite currency nsk cxposure.
Thas analysis assumes thar all other varisbies remain constant,

Interest rate risk
Imterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of @ financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes 11 market interest

rates. The microfinance hank manages its interest rate risk on & net bagis,

The table below shows the impact on the microfinance benk's profit before tax if interest rates had increased or decreased by 10 percent. with
all other varables held constant,

Impact on pre-tax profit

3l-Dee 31-Dee A-Dwe

J0i8 2007 2016

N0 N0 N

1% incres=e T interes rate 124,510 186, 180 135,545
1% decrease n interest ruce (124,310 (186, 180) (133545}

Fair value of financial nssets and liabilities
Financiul instruments not measured at fair value

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts of financial agsets and liabilities not measurad at fair value on the
microfinance bank's statement of financial position:

A1-Dec-18 Ji-lhec-17
Carrying Carrving
amounl Fair value amount Fair value

Financial assers U000 N'ODO N'OD0 N0
Cash and balances with banks 334,061 334001 170,715 170,715
Finaucial assets held to matarioy 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Loan and advunces to banks 570409 STO409 420,271 420,27
Loan and advances s custonmers 4,748,349 4,748,349 4 897 645 4,847,685
Orther ussets 90000 99 009 A0 686 20} bB0

5.951.823 957 828 3,890,357 3,890,357
Financial lHabilitics
Deposirs from cuslomers 2E50.006 2,350,904 2,534,196 2534, 195
Cxher labilities 228 565 22B.563 285107 235,107

3079471 3075471 2,780 364 2,780 104

The notes on pages 7 10 43 are an integral part of these financial statements



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMIiTED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2018.
(L) Financial instruments measured at fair value
The micrafinance bank has no financial asset measured at fair value, subsequent to initial measurement.

e

,—\.
L]

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 : Fair value specifies o hicrarchy of valuation techniques hased on whether the inputs to those valuation
techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable input reflect market data chtained from independent sources:
unobservable imputs reflect the bank's market assumptions, These two tvpes of inputs have created (he following fair
value hierarchy:

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liablity, either
direetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or Liability that are nat based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
J1 December 2018

Carrying amount  Tewvs] | LevelZ  Luvel 3
N'ODD  N'DOO NGO N'OOO

Financial assets
Cash and balanees with banks 334.061 334,061 .
Financial assets held 10 maturity 200,000 200,000 = .
Leans and advances to banks 570,409 - 571,409 -
Leans and advances to castomers 4,748,349 : 4.74R 349 -
(ther assets 99,005 - 99,009

5951828 200,000 5,751,828 -

Finanecial liahilities

Deposits from customers 2,850,906 - 2,850,906
Other habilities 228,565 - 228,565
3,079 471 - 3,079,471

31 December 2017

Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level3
N'OOG  N'0OD N'OD  N'000
Financial asscts
Cash and balanees with banks 170,715 170,715 -
Financizl assets held to maturity 200,000 200,000 - -
Loans and advances to banks 420,271 - 420,271 -
Loans and advances to customers 4,597,685 - 4,897 685 -
Other assets 201.686 - 201,686 o

T5.890,357 200,000 5,690,357 .

Finanecial lizbilities

Deposits from cuslomers 2,534,196 - 2,534,196
Other liabilities 255,107 - 255,107
2.789.304 - 2.789.304

The notes on pages 7 043 are an integral part of these financial statements



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITEDR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018,

3 December 2016

Cuarrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level3
N'0O0  N'OOO0 NGOG N'000
Firsancial assets
Cash and balances with banks 121,146 171046 s
Financial assets held to maturity 195,609 195,809 - -
Loans and advances to banks 870,124 - 870,124 =
Louns and advances to customers 4,260 48 - 4,260,045 -
Onhier assels 119007 - 119,007 E

5566,133 195809 5370324 -

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers 2,796,085 . 2786085
Onher Labilities 3793435 - A79.245
3173330 . 3175330

() Fair value methods and assumprions
1) Cash and cash equivalents

il} The carrying amounts of these balances approsimare their fai- values, I'ey arc on level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Loans and advances to customers and banks

Loans and advances are carried at amortised cost net of provision for impairment, The estimated fair value of leans

and advances represents the discounted amount of estimated futere cash lows expected o be recerved. Expected

eash flows are discounted ot current market rates to determine fair value, They are on level 2 of the fair value hierarehy.

ili) Financial assets held to maturity
Treasury bills represent short term instruements issued Sy the Central bank of Nigena. The fair valur of tresasury bills
arc defernmined with reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical ussels They
are un level 1 of the fair value hicrarchy,

V) Depasits from custonicrs
The estimate fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, is the amount repayable on demand, The estimated air
values of fixed interesi-bearing deposis are determined usng a discounted cash flow model based on a
current yield curve uppropriate for the remalning term e matunty, They are on level 2 of the fair valus
hierarchy,

vi) Other assets und other Hahilities
Other assets and otler ligbilities represent monetary assets which usually has a short recyele period and 25 such the
carrying amount of these balances approximate their values. | hiey &re on fevel 2 of the fair value
hierarchy,

4.6 Capital management
The Microfinance bank's objectives when managing eapital, is 10 ensure that it has odexuate capital to run and grow
its banking business and continue as a going concern into the foraseable future. Tt also ensures that it has
strong capital base so 25 to be able (o responsg 1o unexpected risk and provide adequate returns to its
shareholders and other stakeholders The Microfinace bank defies capital to include equity and othe
FESEIVES,
The Microfinance bank 1s exposed (o externally imposed capitzl as stated by the Central Bank of Nigena (CBN),

Capital management information are submitted to CEN o 2 rhemthly basis and Auditers 1o the Bank are also
required 1o render an annual ceitificate to the Nigeria Deposit Insurance Corparation (NDIC) that inehides the

computed capital adequacy ratio of the Bank.

I'he notes on pages 7 [0 43 &re an integral part of these financial statemen:s



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018.

31 December, 31 December,
2018 2017
5 N'O0D N'000
Interest income
Interest on Loan 1,157,285 1,350,745
Interest on term deposit 87,818 126,307
1,245,103 1,477,552
6 Interest Expense
Borrowings 70,087 92.625
Term depaosits 403,689 412,528
Savings 9.354 8,388
483.330 513,741
7 Impairment charge for credit losses
Loans and advances (o customers
Specific impairment 34,572 350.907
Collective impairment 9,133 18.580
Written off during the vear as bad debt 43,705 369,496
8 Fee and commision income
Management and processing fee 53,869 136,211
Current Account maintenance charges 11,494 11.494
Other charges and commision income 49.828 7.157
145,191 154,862
Fees and commission income excludes amounts included
n deiermining the effective interest rate on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.
O Staff expenses
Salaries and wages 298,334 204,734
Other short term henefits 11,752 10,750
Pension costs 34,480 34,144
344.560 339,628
10 Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation 30,990 T
30,9940 35,777

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FTORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2018,

Other Operating expenses

Directars allewan ces
Audit/consultancy fees

Other expenses [Schedule 1. page 45)
Other Operating expenses

Income tax expenses

Currenr tax:

Current taxes on profit for the year
Total current tax

Deferred tax

Lotal deferred tax Asset / Liability

Income fax expenses

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Frofit before income 1ax

Income tax @30% Tax effects of:

Education 1ax levy

Ulilisation of previously ungecognised tax Iosses
Tax chareze

Movement in current income tax Linbility
At start of the perind

Charge for the vear

Faymenis during the vear

At end of the period

Information Technology Development Levy

Informanion Technology Development Levy is 195 ol PET

Earnings per share

31 December,

31 December,

Basic camnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the ner profit to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary share in issue during the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Profit/(less) attributable to equity holders of the Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in '000s)
Basic sarmings per share (expressed in Kobo per share)

The campany does not have potential ordinary shares will)
convertible options. Hence, basic and diluted EPS are the same

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an ntegral part of these financial statements

2618 2017
NUOU NOon
14,647 47,858
10.628 7.170
248 420 267 217
303,695 322,246
2,094 278
2,094 278
2,094 278
184,008 13,101
1,745 231
349 46
2.094 278
278 2,112
2004 278
(278)  (2112)
_ 2,094 278
1,840 131
131,029 12,692
641,519 641,519
20 2 B




HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER.2018.

31 December, 31 December,

2018 m?z
14 Cash and balances with banks N0 NDD0
Cash 33.684 33,593
Cumrent account balances with hanks Q0377 137,122
Cash balances A34.061 170,715

Forthe puipose of the statement of cash flows, cash and zash equivalents compnse cash in hand balances
held in current and call accountplacemients held with banks and other shor-term highly lguid investments
from the day of sequisition with less than three months' maturity fram the date of acquisiton

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse of: Cash balances (note 14) 334,061 170,713

Licans and advances to banks (nowe 16) 570,409 420,271

Treasury hills (nate 15) 200,000 200,000

Total cash and cash equivalents LI04470 790,986
Eidi

15 Financial nssets held 0 maturity
Listed debt securities

Trzasury bills 200,000 200.000
200,000 200,000
Eaa— _—
Current 200000 200,000
Mon-current - £ _
200,000 200,000

The treasury bills are elassified as held to maturity and are carried 2t amortised cost,

16 Loans and advaneces to banks

Placements with banks 570,408 420,271
570,409 420,271

17  Leans and advances to customers
17.1 Analysis by enstomers:

Teom lowris 2,776,727 2.058.067
Overdratts 1.932.955 | 858 448
Staft Toans IR.667 70,968
Others 0,302
4,748,349 4,897 685
Current 4,748 349 4,897 685
Non-currem - -
Allowances for Credil Josses (396,021 (456,349)
4,352,327 4,441,335

Allowances for Credil losses 1s made up of:
Specifie  Impairment 339,477
Collective Impairment 56,544

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an intearal part of these Mnancial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR IHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER.201B,

17.2 Reconciliation ol impairment allowance on Inans and advances to customers;

Spezific allowanee for impairment
At startof the period

Tmparivemeni doss for e voar

Interest i Suspense

Adjustment w Ympaimmens allowance
Chargewriie back) for the vear

AL end of the period

Caollective allowance for impaicment
Arstt ol the perivd

Impairment {azs fise the vea
Adjustment o Impainnent allowsnge
Chargs'{ write hack) for the vesy

Al end of the portd

Totul frnpairment

Carrying amount

I7.3 Analysis by securiny:

174

Secured nigainst renl esates
Otherwise securel

The Microhmance Bank do not sell or

repladge the collateral normatly. excepl where

the owner of the eollateml is indefad;

Analysis of loans und Advances by Quality

CLASSIFICATION

Performing
Pass and Wach
Substandard

Doubiful
Lot

B maturily
unsder 1 month
1-3 momiths

-6 mionihs

&-1 Imonths
Clver | 2 months

13 Other assers and prepavments

(el assars
Sundry debiors
Accounts Receivahle

Prepaymenis

Sk

Vendor Advanoes:
Olhers-Atlas MFB

BIMS and Systern solutinns

Less: spenific allowances for nnpai et

"Others” i imade up of the bank’s deposit

with Atlus Micmolfinagnoe Bank For the

insulvency of Atles Microfinance Bank, an
umpatrment allow ance s been minde for s

RATID

1%

5%
20%
50%
1005,

31 Decembier, 31 December,
2018 7
N0 N0

518237 | 18,887
. 24,527
(213,331 24335
34.572 150,007
139477 B kT
47411 25,71
- 3132
9,133 18,580
T 5549 37411
R LY Tha.647
4352327 4,332,037
31-Dec-17 I1-Dec-17
(1] sl 1 1]
27TeT027 2,958 3467
LT 62 1,915,718
AN ST AMOLUNT AMOUNT
201y 7 26
4,504,787 4,5312915 404,775
8.1 58,240 A.33F
26,131 11,520 7.944
30008 20,740 33,052
206,324 232,401 130,355
A, 748,348 4 RO7 GBS 4. 260,048
460 453 275,893 75,241
2,001,353 1712413 I 160414
458,957 14006549 |.952.327
942153 1125611 a02.282
376,430 &3, 100 450 TR4
4,748,348 4,857,085 4,260,045
2-Dexc-18 31-Dec-17 IM-Dree-l16
R T NG W00
10,834 11 2548
84235 5198 12558
19,263 L 15,106
44,734 S0,500
12444 B33 12,835
7.559 07,846 44,958
40,000 0000 04048
L 5,000 | 5,00
119,747
0 Oy
THT4T 93,157 |07, 453
LR 201,680 TT9.007
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BAVK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2018.

Reconciliation of impairment allowauce on Other Known Loss

At start of the penod
{Write back)/charge for the vear
At end of the period

The bank had impaired deposit with Atlas Microfinance Bank, This
cells for the impairment allowance,

Property and equipiment
Refer 1o Property, plant and equipment on page 39

Intangible ussets

Cost

Al | January, 2018
Additions

AL S December 2018

Accenmulated amorlisation
Al ] January. 2018
Amortisation charge

At 31 December 2018

Carry Amount
At 3 December 2018
At 3T December 2017

21 Deposits from customers

Demand
Time

Savings
Other deposit

Currant
Non-current

22 Delerred tax

(a) - Deferred tax assels

(b) - Deferred tax linbilities
Deferred tax liability 1o be recovered within 12 months

{a-b) - Deferred tax Nel

31 December,

31 December,

2018 2017
N'ODO N'000
45,550 7125
(3,550) 35425
4,000 45.550

Computer Computer

Software Software
N0 N'OOO
25,735 25,738
12713 7144
5573 5573
18,286 12,713
7449 13,022
13,022 15,385
31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
N'DOO N0
271,965 254 53R
2357 680 2,070,730
221261 208,909
2.850.906 1,534,196
2850906 2554, 1490
2.850.006 T334,196
31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
I 'O NUOD
49,045 49,045

49 145 =
19,045 3

- 49045




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2018, 31 December,

218

43 Other linbilities N'O00
Sundry creditors 123,003
Account pavables 40,176
Interest payables 30,920
Other payables 32,626
Information Technology Development Levy 1.840
228,505

HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December,

2017
N'000

Other payables are made up of unclaimed deposits and
taxes

24 Berrowings

25

119.243
23,740
25,573
86,320

131

235.107

835,455
1,000

836,455
92,054

924,509

93 654
&35 455

Long Term Loan 615,230

Term loan =
615,250

Bank overdraits -
615,250

Term loan

Current -

Non-current 615250
615,250

928,509

Analysis of Borrowings:
Access Bank Plc g

1000
92,054
388,600

121,855
323,000

928,500

1,000,000

504,186
47,333

641,519

FCMB Ple -

MSMED Funds 388.600

CBN Housing Funds 30,000

Oiko Credil Fund 26,757

BOI Fund 149,892
615,250

Share capital

Authorised

1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid

(pening 641.519

Issued during the year -

Ordinary shares of N1 each 641,519

Share premium

Opening 180.650

Issued during the year .

112,983
H7.667

Ordmary shares of N1 each 180.650

180,630




HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2018,

Statutory and Regulatory Risk Reserves

During the period under review, there was transfer to
statutory reserve as stipulated by Section 19(d) of the
regulatory and supervisory framework for Microfinanee

-

Stalutory Reserve

At start of the period
Transfer from profit and loss account
At end of the period

Nigeria Prudential Guidelines

The Bank maintains information on the credit quality of its
loans and advances in line with CBN prudential guidelines.
Where the provision under prodential guideline is higher
than IFRS impairment. the Bank recognises impairment
based on IFRS and difference between IFRS and
Prudential Guideline is recognised in Regulatory Risk
Reserve as non distributable reserve. Where the provision
under Prudential Guideline is less than the TFRS
impairment. the Bank recognises impairment hased on
IFRS.

Loan Loss Provision

31-Dec-17
31-Dee-18

Regulatory Risk Reserve

At start of the period
Current vear
At end of the perind

Revaluation Reserve

At start ol the period
Current year

At end of the period

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

N'000 N'000

516,503 513,330

32,757 3,173

549,261 516,503
NGAAP [FRS Difference

NG00 N'0OO0 N'00

(565,647)  (456.349) (109,298)
(396.022) (396,022} -

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

N'(10 N'000

109,288 -

- 109,298

109,208 —1w.20%

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

N'OGO N0

108,521 -

- 108,521

108,521 108,521
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ASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LEMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER_2018.

Related party transactions

The Microfinance bank was ingorporated in Migeria. and it is controlled by various
sharehalders of the company's wrdinary shares,

Transactiops and balances & Insider Reluted Credirs

Thereare transactions and outstanidimg balances between the ks management
persenncl and the company in the normal course of business during 31 December
2018 financial year end - N223,1 HL660 ( 31 December 201 7N 118,121,318)

The Credil facilitnes was extended in the narmal course of business 1o compaiies in
which some of the bank's Directors have interest during the year under review. The
tacility i5 performing and significantly cash backed,

Key management eompensation -

Key management kas been determined to be the members of the Executive
Committes (EXCO) of the Microfinance bank, The compensation paid o key
management personne! for employee services is shown below:

Salanies and other shor-lerm employee banefis

Employees

The number of employees of the Company, other than di rectors, whe received
emoluments i the {ollowing ranges (excluding pension contribtions and certain
benefits) were,

N130.001-N230,000
N250.001-N 300,000
N300.001 - N350.000
NAS0001-NI50,000
NAFD001-N 350,000
N55OL001 and N&3(,00
N633001 and ahove

Compliance with banking regulation
The bank did not contravene any regulation of the Banks and Other Financial

Institutions Aet 1991 or relevant ciceulars issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria.

Events alter statement of financial position date

31 Decéember,

31 Decembher.

There were no significant events that cccurred subsequent o the statement of fnaneial position date,

Recancilintion of profit before tax 1o eash generated from operntions

Prafiv/{loss) before income ax
Adjustnents for:
Depieciation
— Amarlsanon
— Adjustment
= Profit from sale of property and plam
Impairment charge on credit losses
- Income from sales of property
= Impairment (write hack)/charge on other known loss
- Interest income
— Interest expense
tlncrease)/decrease in Operating assets:
- Loans and advances o customers
Other sssets
lnereaseddecrease) in operating linhilities:

2018 2017
Do NTOOD
23,993 22 858
13,097 1SR

31-Dee-18 31-Dee-17
N'IEE N0

i o

4 17

7 72

112 119
16l 214
J-Dec-18 31-Dee-17
M N0
184,008 | 3,100
25417 30.204
5573 5.573
(132,501 141,734
3.026 450
43,703 60 496
443 86
(14,048 38425
{1,245.103) (1477.352)
483,330 513,741
148,350 (637637
102,676 (B2.579)
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER,2018.

31 December, 31 December,
2018 Yo 2017 Yo
N'0DD N'000
Income interest 1.245.103 1.477,552
1,245,103 L477,352
Overheads and payments [or other services (57.607) (313218)
1187406 1,164,334
Other Income 145,191 154,862
1,332,688 Lan 1.319,196 100
Applied as follows: S
To pay employces:
Salaries, wages and social benefits 344,566 26 339,628 26
Ta pay government:
Taxation 2,094 0.2 278 0.0
Information Technolozy Development Levy 1,840 0.1 131 0.0
To provide Capital 212,169 62 822,169 62
To provide for enhancementi of assets
expansion of business and payment of
dividend to shareholders:
Depreciation 30,990 2 35,777 3
Profit retained 131,029 10 121,213 9
1,332,688 100 1,319,196 100

Value added is the wealth created by the efforts
of the company and ils employees and its
allpeation between employees, sharcholders.
government and re-investment for the future
creation of further wealth.



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
THREE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER.2018.

Assets
Cash and balances with banks

Financial assets held to maturity

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets and prepayments
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred income tax Asset
Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from customers
Current income tax liability
Other liabilities
Borrowings

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Share premium
Revaluation Reserve
Regulatory risk reserve
Statutory reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

31 31 31
December, December, December,
2018 2017 2016
N'000 N'000 N'G0O
334,061 170,715 121,146
200,000 200,000 195,800
570,409 420,271 870,124
4,352,327 4,441,235 4,131,562
99.009 201,686 119,007
443,722 437,444 382,620
7.440 13,022 18,595
e 11,718 11,718
6,006,978 5,896,102 5,850,582
2,850,906 2.534.196 2,796,085
2.094 278 2,112
228,565 255,107 379.245
615,250 028,500 929,675
3,096,816 3.718,090 4,107,117
641,519 641,519 594,186
180,650 1 80,630 112,933
108,521 108,521
109,208 109,298
549,261 S16.503 513,330
720,914 621.611 522,964
2,310,162 2,178,102 1,743,463
6,006,978 5,806,192 5.850.582




HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDULE OF OTHER EXPENSES |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018.

31

December,

Note 11
2018
N'000

NDIC Premium and other insurance 15,557
Oifice Expenses 4226
Repairs and Maintenance 5.502
Transport and Accommodation expenses 1,571
Diesel and Fuel expenses 18,614
Directors related expenses 3.836
Uility 6,408
Corporate Social Responsibility 14,116
Operating expenses 37,497
Printing and Stationery expenses 9317
Rent 16,000
Bank Charges 14,141
Security Services 39,754
Stafl welfare 4,646
Telephone expenses 2.240
Vehicles running expenses 9,847
Local Training 10,500
Legal Expenses 12,5358

248420

31
December,

2017

N'000
15.269
4026
11,838
8,714
23,688
2,580
o801
14 838
316,403
12.949
16,597
22,751
34,838
28,308
1,800
11,036
10.374
2316
267,217

_—






